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MILLER HOUSE

In November 2008 the IMA announced that it would acquire the 
landmark Miller House and Garden in Columbus, Indiana. One of the 
country’s most highly regarded examples of mid-century Modernist 
residences, the Miller House was designed by Eero Saarinen, with 
interiors by Alexander Girard and landscape design by Daniel Urban 
Kiley. Members of the Miller family and the Irwin-Sweeney-Miller 
Foundation agreed to donate the house and gardens, along with 
many of the original furnishings, to the Museum and pledged $5 
million toward an $8 million endowment for the house and grounds. 
The IMA is raising $3 million for the remainder of the endowment 
and $2 million for the 18-month renovation of the house, which will 
entail restoration of many of the original period details. Once the 
renovation is completed, the IMA will work with the Columbus Area 
Visitors Center to offer public access to the house and gardens. 

Commissioned by industrialist and philanthropist J. Irwin Miller and 
his wife, Xenia Simons Miller, in 1952, Miller House and Garden 
was designated a National Historic Landmark in 2000. The house 
expands upon an architectural tradition developed by Ludwig Mies 
van der Rohe, with an open and flowing layout, flat roof and vast 
stone and glass walls. 

NONIE’S GARDEN

In fall 2008, the circular garden bed in front of the Efroymson Family 
Entrance Pavilion was dedicated in honor of Nonie (Eleanor) Krauss. 
The late wife of IMA board vice chairman John Krauss, Nonie Krauss 
was a life member of the Nature Conservancy, an advisory board 
member of the Central Indiana Trust, secretary of the Indianapolis 
Garden Club, and an active member of the IMA, and the new gaden 
serves as a fitting tribute to her. Made possible by a generous gift 
from John Krauss and Nonie’s friends and family, the new fully
planted, year-round garden changes with the seasons, brightening  
the spot where so many IMA visitors pass on their way into  
the Museum.

THE HISTORIC ORCHARD OF OLDFIELDS

Restoration of the historic orchard on the grounds of Oldfields, made 
possible through generous funding by Gene and Rosemary Tanner, 
was completed in spring 2009. Oldfields, the 26-acre historic estate 
and house museum located on the IMA campus, is the former home 
of Indianapolis businessman and philanthropist J.K. Lilly Jr. The estate 
features gardens and grounds designed in the 1920s by Percival  
Gallagher of the famous landscape architecture firm Olmsted Brothers. 
The restoration brings to life a long-lost aspect of estate life during 
the Country Place era in the United States. While aesthetically 
pleasing with its arbor and long borders of perennials, this garden  
also functions as a working orchard, containing apple and other fruit 
trees, as well as bush fruits and extensive vegetable beds that feature 
many heirloom varieties.

ENVIRONMENTAL & HISTORIC ASSETS

Top - The Miller House in spring.
 

Above - The kitchen at the Miller House. 



IMA docent Marian Pettengill
guides young visitors on  

a tour of the musuem.
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TEACHER AND STUDENT PROGRAMS

Students from seven schools in the  
Indianapolis Public Schools (IPS) 
district participated in visual and 
performing arts programs through the 
Collaborative Arts Partnership (CAP) 
during the 2007/2008 school year.  
The students, in grades K through 8, 
developed dance and theater perfor-
mances and created paintings, draw-
ings, mosaics and relief sculpture  
focused on planet earth. For one 
project, students painted a bridge 
located near their school, and oth-
ers participated in an international 
photo and video exchange program 
with young people in Cape Town, 
South Africa. Teens in the Museum 
Apprentice Program (MAP) participate 
in paid internships during the spring 
and summer. The six students from 
Broad Ripple High School and Herron 
High School who were selected for the 
pilot year of the program completed 
projects in the Curatorial, Design and 
Installation, Education, Protection 
Services, New Media, Marketing and 
Visitor Services departments. Their  
experiences were recorded on the 
social networking site MySpace.com.

Working with faculty and staff from 
the School of Education at Indiana 
University-Purdue University India-
napolis (IUPUI), the IMA became a 
host site for a “resident cohort” of 
education students.  In addition to 
providing a meeting and classroom 
space for the students as they enter 
the program their junior year, mem-
bers of the Museum education staff 
meet with them regularly through-
out the two-year program. Topics of 
discussion include Visual Thinking 
Strategies (VTS) (an art viewing and 
discussion curriculum) and using mu-
seums as classroom resources.  

During the 2007-08 and  2008-09 
school years, IMA staff met regularly 
with 25 students and were also able  
to introduce the Museum’s educational 
offerings, collections, and other  
resources to approximately 100 addi-
tional students in the IUPUI program.  

During the 2008-09 school year, the 
IMA continued to expand Viewfinders, 
the Museum’s signature educational 
program. Based on Visual Thinking 
Strategies (VTS), Viewfinders employs 
a facilitated discussion technique that 
encourages students to build their 
critical thinking, develop vocabulary, 
consider multiple perspectives, and 
spend more time looking at and talk-
ing about art. The program includes 
teacher training, an in-class visit by an 
IMA staff person in the fall, classroom 
lessons for the teachers, and a field trip 
to the IMA in the spring. Each student, 
teacher and chaperone receives a free  
one-year family membership to the 
IMA for participating in Viewfinders. 
IMA educators visited almost 800 
students in their classrooms in IPS 
schools and welcomed more than 
2,000 IPS students to the IMA in the 
spring. IMA educators also visited 
more than 1,500 students in the 
Washington Township Schools, and 
more than 2,100 came to the IMA  
on field trips. 

The IMA also offered graduate credit 
and continuing education units to 
practicing educators seeking renewal 
of their licenses. These opportunities 
were available through public programs 
and studio programs offered at  
the Museum. 

HIGHLIGHTS OF IMA EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY PROGRAMS
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DOCENT PROGRAMS

From July 2008 through June 2009, IMA 
docents gave tours totaling 4,430 hours, 
and gave a total of 15,988 volunteer hours, 
including tours, study time and continuing 
docent education. In 2008 the IMA served 
over 28,000 students through a menu of 
tour offerings that were either docent-led 
or self-guided. In addition to the on-site 
program, IMA docents provide patients at 
Riley Children’s Hospital and their families 
with art-making opportunities based on 
the Museum’s permanent collection. Ap-
proximately 170 children ranging in age 
from 2 to 15 attended sessions in the Child 
Life Center at Riley in 2008. Expansion 
plans for this program include Saint Vin-
cent Children’s Hospital.   

SUSTAINABILITY PROGRAMS

 Planet Indy, a series of public programs 
about living creatively and sustainably in 
Indiana, brings inspiring thinkers to speak 
at the IMA. Nationally known chef and 
food educator Alice Waters, who visited 
the Museum in December 2008, talked to 
a packed house in The Toby about the aes-
thetic pleasures of locally grown food and 
the importance of educating young people 
about the cultivation and preparation of 
fresh food. Twenty community partners 
participated in a post-talk sustainability 
expo. Waters also had a part in the IMA’s 
Earthworks program, which provided 
3rd- through 5th-grade students from 
Cold Spring School Environmental Magnet 
with an opportunity to explore the IMA 
grounds and gardens and to consider ways 
to become more aware of their natural sur-
roundings. Waters spoke to students in an 
all-school assembly, and each child in the 
Earthworks program received a signed copy 
of her book Edible Schoolyard.  

STAR STUDIO

Nearly 30,000 visitors attended the exhibi-
tion Squares-Folds-Life: Contemporary Ori-
gami by Robert J. Lang in the Star Studio. 
The show featured more than 30 of Lang’s 
origami creations, and many of those visi-
tors made their own origami in the drop-in 
studio. More than Four Legs: A Closer Look at 
Chairs invited visitors to look at chairs as 
works of art.  The exhibition was designed 
in collaboration with Carla Atwood Hart-
man, education director for Eames Office 
and granddaughter of designers Charles 
and Ray Eames. More than 18,000 visitors 
came to see the exhibition, which included 
chairs designed by the Eameses as well 
as works by Emeco, Gaetano Pesce, and 
Olivier Morgue.

MULTI-AGE PROGRAMS

On January 19, 2009, about 5,000 visitors 
of all ages participated in activities focused 
on promoting a peaceful existence around 
the world, in celebration of Martin Luther 
King Jr. Day. That evening, the Museum 
offered a free performance of The Music, 
Martin & Me, conceived by artist and  
producer Bill Myers for the IMA.

STUDIO PROGRAMS 
Classes related to the IMA collection and 
exhibitions were offered for teens, adults, 
and children through spring 2009. As part 
of the IMA’s strategic restructuring in early 
2009, the Museum no longer offers studio 
classes; however, the Museum continues 
to offer drop-in art-making activities for 
visitors of all ages.   

PARTNERSHIPS

ArtsWORK Indiana facilitates access to 
careers in the arts for people with dis-
abilities through awareness, education, 
and encouragement. As a lead partner, the 
Indianapolis Museum of Art Accessibility 
Taskforce has played a major advisory role 
in the development of the organization. 

Bosma Industries is dedicated to empow-
ering people who are blind or visually 
impaired by creating opportunities that 
lead to the achievement of each individ-
ual’s employment, economic, social, and 
self-determination goals.  In partnership 
with Bosma, the IMA has offered accessible 
tours led by the Horticulture Department, 
including audio description and sensory 
experiences, since 2007.  

Indiana Juvenile Justice Task Force (IJJTF)  
is a private not-for-profit that provides 
court-mandated counseling for youth 
and their families across Indiana. Fam-
ily therapists from IJJTF and their clients 
visited the IMA from January through April 
2009 to participate in VTS discussions in 
the galleries as part of their group counsel-
ing sessions. A VTS workshop led by IMA 
educators was then held for a team of IJJTF 
therapists interested in applying the tech-
nique in their work with clients. 

Through a space usage grant given by the 
IMA to the Indiana School for the Deaf, 12 
deaf and hard-of-hearing students, grades 4  
through high school, performed ASL song-
interpretation, dance, drum songs, ASL 
storytelling and ASL poetry in front  
of a live audience in the Tobias Theater  
during Disabilities Awareness Month  
(March 2009). 

A free program unique to Indiana, Camp 
Tataya Mato, offered by the Jameson Camp, 
makes a traditional camping experience 
available to children from across the state 
who are affected by HIV/AIDS. Approxi-
mately 50 children visited the IMA 
in June 2009 for a day of touring the  
galleries and grounds, lunch and an art- 
making experience.  

HIGHLIGHTS OF IMA EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY PROGRAMS
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Because the IMA values the conservation of its environ-
mental assets as well as its artistic assets, the Museum 
has established a new Greening the IMA task force, 
which has been charged with creating a comprehensive 
plan for greening and sustainability practices. IMA Board 
member June McCormack is chair of the task force, and 
Mark Zelonis, Ruth Lilly Deputy Director of Environ-
mental and Historic Preservation, is staff liaison. Other 
members include Board members William Chin and John 
Krauss, former board member Dan Appel, and IMA staff 
members Chad Franer, Claire Hoevel, Anne Laker, and 
Jack Leicht. Among the goals that the task force hopes 
to accomplish through this initiative are educating IMA 
staff and external constituents about the importance 
and means of “going green”;  reducing the IMA’s carbon 
footprint; partnering with neighbors and city, state, and 
private entities to leverage resources for these efforts, 
and, ultimately, demonstrating environmental leader-
ship through pioneering methods of stewardship.

In 2008, the IMA joined the Indiana Recycling Coalition 
in an effort to improve resource reduction and reuse 
and recycling activities. Also in 2008, the IMA joined 
the Environmental Protection Agency’s Green Power 
Partnership and made a commitment to use green power 
where feasible in its operations as a means to proactively 
address global climate risk. The Museum has been a 
member of the Central Indiana Clean Air Partnership 
since 2007.

Since 2006, the IMA has implemented a wide range  
of green technologies and strategies throughout  
the Museum: 

•ENERGY STAR certification. In April 2008, the IMA 
became the first fine art museum to be recognized by the 
government, achieving ENERGY STAR certification, for 
its efforts to become more environmentally responsible. 

•Energy consumption. At the end of 2008, the IMA had 
reduced its natural gas usage by 42% since 2005, and had 
also reduced its average monthly demand for electricity 
by 10.3% since 2005.

•Green power. All IMA outbuildings take part in India-
napolis Power & Light Company’s green energy option. 
One hundred percent of the electricity used in these 
buildings is generated from clean, renewable energy 
sources, including wind, solar, geothermal or biomass 
generation (including landfill gas). IMA outbuildings 
comprise 3 percent of the IMA’s total electricity demand.

•Lighting efficiency. In January 2009, the IMA partnered 
with Sylvania Lighting Services to improve lighting ef-
ficiency throughout the Museum by replacing standard 
bulbs with more energy-efficient bulbs with a longer 
life span throughout the service and ground levels of 
the Museum. The IMA projects that this change will cut 
energy usage in these areas by 24%. With the energy sav-
ings and material cost savings, the IMA anticipates a net 
annual savings of nearly $9,000. The Museum has also 
installed motion-sensitive lights where appropriate.

•Recycling. Waste-recycling initiatives at the IMA have 
led to the following achievements in 2008: 181 pounds 
of newspaper recycled per week, on average; 131 pounds 
of office paper recycled per week, on average; and 44 
pounds of plastic, aluminum, and glass recycled per week. 

•Paper use. The IMA prefers using vendors who use 
“green” practices, including Saint Clair Press, a print-
ing service, which recently announced its new Forest 
Stewardship Council (FSC) certification. Additionally, 
the Museum has taken steps to reduce its paper use 
by relying more heavily on its Web site to disseminate 
information about Museum programming. 

•Exhibition installation. The IMA’s exhibition design 
and installation teams reuse risers that were built for 
previous IMA exhibitions and take measures to reduce 
construction waste.

• Tobias Theater: During the renovation of Tobias The-
ater (The Toby) in 2008, the IMA used green products 
whenever possible and recycled 23,642 pounds of metal, 
carpet, foam, fabric and plastic. Additionally, 80 old the-
ater seats were donated to a local theater group.

•Horticultural practices. The IMA horticulture staff fol-
lows a number of sustainable practices on the grounds, 
including a landscape design utilizing  groundcover and 
plantings that minimize disturbance of the ground; 
reduction of horticulture waste by composting and using 
finished compost in beds around the campus; an inte-
grated pest management system; diversion of rainwater 
runoff from parking lots through a four-bay filter to the 
wetlands in the Art & Nature Park; re-use of scrap stone 
from expansion projects for walls and walks; and organic 
gardening methods for the newly renovated orchard  
of Oldfields.  

SUSTAINABILITY AT THE IMA
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ALLEN WHITEHILL CLOWES GALLERY  
IN WOOD PAVILLION 
Breaking the Mode: Contemporary Fashion from the  
Permanent Collection, Los Angeles County Museum of Art  
March 16–June 1, 2008 
Organized by the Los Angeles County Museum of Art. 
Sponsored by Saks Fifth Avenue.    

To Live Forever: Egyptian Treasures from the  
Brooklyn Museum
July 13–September 7, 2008 
Organized by the Brooklyn Museum. 

Power and Glory: Court Arts of China’s Ming Dynasty 
October 26, 2008–January 11, 2009 
Organized by the Asian Art Museum of San Francisco, 
the Palace Museum, the Nanjing Municipal Museum 
and the Shanghai Museum. The exhibition was devel-
oped through a grant from the Robert H.N. Ho Family 
Foundation. Additional support was provided by the 
Henry Luce Foundation, the Starr Foundation and the 
National Endowment for the Arts. This exhibition was 
supported by an indemnity from the Federal Council on 
the Arts and the Humanities. Sponsored by Fifth Third 
Bank. 

European Design Since 1985: Shaping the New Century 
March 8–June 21, 2009 
Organized by the IMA in conjunction with the Denver 
Art Museum and Kingston University, London. Support 
provided by the Mondriaan Foundation, Amsterdam, 
with additional support from the Consulate General  
of the Netherlands in New York.

Alliance Gallery

Edward Hopper: Paper to Paint 
August 30, 2008–January 11, 2009

Preserving a Legacy: Wishard Hospital Murals 
January 17–March 29, 2009 

Frances Parker Appel Gallery

Tajima Hiroyuki 
April 1–October 11, 2009 

Carmen & Mark Holeman Video Gallery 

Lida Abdul
April 11–September 28, 2008  

Mark Lewis: Rear Projection: Molly Parker
November 7, 2008–April 5, 2009 

Adaptation: Video Installations by Ben-Ner, Herrera,  
Sullivan, and Sussman & The Rufus Corporation 
May 8–August 16, 2009 
Organized by the David and Alfred Smart Museum of Art 

Conant Galleries 

British Qualities: Works on Paper, 1875–1930
February 16–July 13, 2008 

Fine Prints for Five Dollars 
July 26, 2008–April 19, 2009

Eighteenth-Century Furniture Design
May 23, 2009–February 21, 2010 

Efroymson Family Entrance Pavilion
Support provided by a grant from the Efroymson
Family Fund, a CICF Fund.

Julianne Swartz: Terrain
February 8–April 20, 2008

Friends WithYou: Dream Maker 
May 2–November 2, 2008

Orly Genger: Whole 
November 21, 2008–June 14, 2009 

Lilly House 
Christmas at Lilly House 
November 18, 2008–January 11, 2009 
Sponsored by OneAmerica

Note: All exhibitions were organized by the 
IMA except where organizer is named.

EXHIBITIONS
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Schaefer and Gray Gallery

On the Road Again with Jack Kerouac and Robert Frank
June 26–September 21, 2008 
Organized by the IMA with The Lilly Library, Indiana 
University, and Addison Gallery of American Art. 

Susan and Charles Golden Gallery 

Gifts of the Gamboliers
September 6, 2008–June 7, 2009 

Art of the Digital Age Gallery  
(now The Davis LAB) 

MMFX–Manufacturing Material Effects: Rethinking Design 
and Making in Architecture  
March 28–June 8, 2008 
Organized by the IMA and Ball State University’s Insti-
tute for Digital Fabrication. 

North Hall Gallery 

Indiana Artists’ Club Annual Exhibition
April 20–June 1, 2008
Organized by the Indiana Artists' Club.

Indiana Artists’ Club Annual Exhibition
April 18–May 31, 2009
Organized by the Indiana Artists' Club.

Watercolor Society of Indiana Annual Juried Show 
September 28–October 25, 2008
Organized by the Watercolor Society. 

Star Studio

Squares-Folds-Life: Contemporary Origami by  
Robert J. Lang
February 17–July 20, 2008  

More Than Four Legs: A Closer Look at Chairs
August 10, 2008–January 19, 2009  

EXHIBITIONS

McCormack Forefront Galleries 

On Procession
May 2–August 10, 2008 
(Parade: Saturday, April 26, 2008, Fountain Square,  
Indianapolis) 
Supported by the Arts Council of Indianapolis and the 
Indianapolis Cultural Development Commission. 

Class Pictures: Photographs by Dawoud Bey 
September 26–November 23, 2008 
Organized by Aperture Foundation. Sponsored by The 
Penrod Society. 

Collected Thoughts: Works from the Dorothy and  
Herbert Vogel Collection 
December 12, 2008–April 12, 2009 
Sponsored by The Penrod Society. 

Adaptation: Video Installations by Ben-Ner, Herrera,  
Sullivan, and Sussman & The Rufus Corporation 
May 8–August 16, 2009 
Organized by the David and Alfred Smart Museum of Art 

Milliken Gallery

Cirrus Editions/Crown Point Press
May 31–March 15, 2009 
Organized by the IMA. 

Paul Fashion Arts Gallery 

Simply Halston
April 12, 2008–January 4, 2009 

Fashion in Bloom
April 4, 2009–January 31, 2010

Paul Textile Arts Gallery

Shared Beauty: Eastern Rugs & Western Beaded Purses 
May 31, 2008–April 5, 2009 
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008
For more details on these works of art, and to see images, search the IMA’s collections database using the accession  

number or the artist’s name — http://www.imamuseum.org/search/mercury  

Asante people

Ghana, Western Africa

Hair Comb for Woman, 1900–1940 

wood

10 3/8 x 4 1/2 x 1 3/8 in. 

From the collection of Richard  

and Carole Darst 2008.752 

Augusta Savage, American, 1892–1962

Gamin, 1929

hand-painted plaster 

19 1/8 x 5 3/4 x 4 1/8 in. 

The Indianapolis Chapter of the Links, Inc.,  

Gift of the Friends of American Art by  

exchange 2008.183 
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008

Tanabe Chikuunsai I

Japanese, 1877–1937

Plaited Wide-mouthed Flower Basket with Handle 

(sashiko hirokuchi hana kago), 1919

bamboo and rattan

17 5/16 x 11 7/16 in. 

Purchased with funds provided by Leonard and Kathryn 

Betley, Peter and Zora Dunn, Tim and Jody Garrigus, 

Walter and Laura Jolly,  

Douglas L. Tillman in honor of the 2008 IMA Japan Tour 

2008.258 







Omer Fast

Israeli, b. 1972

The Casting, 2007

four-channel video installation, color, sound; 14 min. 

Carmen & Mark Holeman Contemporary Fund, Henry F. and 

Katherine DeBoest Memorial Fund 2008.250 

© Omer Fast 
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008



Eliel Saarinen

American, b. Finland, 1873–1950

Sideboard, 1929

mahogany and other veneers

49 5/16 x 77 9/16 x 20 13/16 in. 

Jane Weldon Myers Acquisition Fund 2008.1 
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008

Paul Gauguin, French, 1848–1903

Edward Ancourt (printer), French 

The Joys of Brittany, from the series Dessins lithographiques (The Volpini Suite), 1889

zincograph with watercolor and gouache on canary yellow wove paper 

8 x 9 1/2 in. (image) 

Caroline Marmon Fesler Fund, Beeler Fund, Anonymous Art Fund,  

Mr. and Mrs. William R. Spurlock Fund, Mrs. Pierre F. Goodrich  

Endowed Art Fund, Nancy Foxwell Neuberger Acquisition Endowment  

Fund, Gift of the Alliance of the Indianapolis Museum of Art, Russell  

and Becky Curtis Art Purchase Endowment Fund, Roger G. Wolcott  

Fund, E. Hardey Adriance Fine Arts Acquisition Fund in memory of  

Marguerite Hardey Adriance, Mary V. Black Art Endowment Fund,  

Delavan Smith Fund, Emma Harter Sweetser Fund, Cecil F. Head  

Art Fund, Mr. and Mrs. Theodore P. Van Vorhees Art Fund, Mr. and  

Mrs. Richard Crane Fund, Mr. and Mrs. William B. Ansted, Jr. Art Fund,  

Richard W. Lee Memorial Fund, General Endowed Art Fund 2008.359.2

El Greco and Workshop, Greek, 1541–1614,active in Spain

St. Luke, about 1610–1614

oil on canvas, 28 1/4 x 21 5/8 in.

The Clowes Fund Collection 2008.273 



Gustave Baumann

American, 1881–1971

Grand Canyon (Cedar Tree), 1920

tempera over graphite on brown paper

9 x 10 5/8 in. 

Gift of Ann Baumann 2008.57
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008

Bes-Ben

American, 1898–1988

Hat (dogs), 1950s

jersey, plastic, netting, felt

Gift of the Alliance of the Indianapolis Museum of Art 

2008.7
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ART ACQUISITIONS 2008

Kuna Indians

San Blas Islands, Panama

Shirt Panels (mola), about 1950s

appliquéd cotton

16 x 19 3/8 in. 

The Paul and Irene Hollister Collection of Kuna Molas 

2008.403

Rudi Gernreich, American, b. 1922

Dress, 1968

wool and vinyl 

L: 30 1/2 in. (front) 

E. Hardey Adriance Fine Arts Acquisition Fund in memory 

of  Marguerite Hardey Adriance, Textile Art Fund,  

Deaccessioned Textile Fund 2008.211

 



Charles Eames, American, 1907–1978

Ray Kaiser Eames, American, 1912–1988

Pre-production DCW, 1945

birch plywood, rubber/nylon mounts, 

steel hardware

29 x 19 x 20 in.

Koch Design Arts Purchase Fund 2009.27
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ART ACQUISITIONS JANUARY–JUNE 2009

African 

Igbo people, Ritual Chalk Spoon, 1920–1950, wood, hide, fiber, rope, copper, pigment.  
Gift of Mr. Thomas Slater 2009.6

Asian 

Guan Ping, Chinese, 1895–1967, A Garden Scene (with Scholar and Lady), 1942, ink and color on paper.  
Gift of Mr. and Mrs. Irving Y. Lo 2009.4

Shotei Ibata, Japanese, b.1935, Cloud, April 17, 2008, ink on paper. Purchased with funds provided by 
Leonard and Kathryn Betley, Peter and Zora Dunn, Tim and Jody Garrigus, Walter and Laura Jolly, Douglas 
L. Tillman in honor of the 2008 IMA Japan Tour 2009.2

Wang Xuetao, Chinese, 1903–1982, Bamboo, Day Lilly, Chrysanthemum, Butterfly and Rock after Wang 
Yuan, mid-1900s, ink and color on paper. Gift of Mr. and Mrs. Irving Y. Lo 2009.5

Yu Zhonglin, Chinese, b.1925, Old Tree and Cold Birds, 1966, ink and color on paper.  
Gift of Mr. and Mrs. Irving Y. Lo 2009.3

Contemporary

Orly Genger, American, b. 1979, Len, 2008, nylon rope and acrylic latex paint.  
Carmen & Mark Holeman Contemporary Fund 2009.1

Type A, American, Push AA <----> AB / 200 (c), 2004, crayon on paper. Purchased with funds provided by 
Mark Demerly, Mark and Jean Easter, Kent Hawryluk, Susie Jacobs, Pat and James LaCrosse, Ron Reeve, 
Anna and James White, Trent Spence, George and Jan Rubin, and Mary Wicker 2009.55

Type A, American, Push AA <----> AB / 5-1, 2004, diptych, color coupler prints. Purchased with funds  
provided by Howard and Anita Harris and the Anita Harris Birthday Fund 2009.56

Design Arts 

Matali Crasset, French, b.1965; Philippe Starck, French, b.1949, Soundstation Radio Alarm Clock, 1996–98, 
plastic. Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.43

Charles Eames, American, 1907–1978; Ray Kaiser Eames, American, 1912–1988, Pre-production DCW, 
1945, birch plywood, rubber/nylon mounts, steel hardware. Koch Design Arts Purchase Fund 2009.27

Ephraim Haines, American, 1740–1856; Henry Connelly, American, 1775–1837, Armchair, about 1810, 
wood, caning, upholstery. Gift of the Alliance of the Indianapolis Museum of Art 2009.49

Ole Jensen, Danish, b.1958, Washing Up Bowl and Brush, 1996, rubber, beech, boars’ hair.  
Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.42A–B

Marc Newson, Australian, b..1963, Dish Doctor, 1997, polypropylene. Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.41

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (blue, 8D0151), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic.  
The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection, Gift of Gallery 91 2009.30
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ART ACQUISITIONS JANUARY–JUNE 2009

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (green 95124), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.31

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (black 684748), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.32

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (white 682030), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.33

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (gray 952498), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.34

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (ivory 911891), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.35

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (brown 7D6309), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.36

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (white 3686433), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.37

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, CABANE de Zucca Le Chocolat Series Watch (blue 3683222), designed 
1996–97, silicone, chromium-plated steel, plastic. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection,  
Gift of Gallery 91 2009.38

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, ZEBRA/C.A.R.D.Y. Pencil and Ball-Point Pen, designed 1990s, plastic and 
steel. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection, Gift of Gallery 91 2009.39A–C

Akira Onozuka, Japanese, b.1950, ZEBRA/C.A.R.D.Y. Pencil and Ball-Point Pen, designed 1990s, plastic, 
steel. The Liliane and David M. Stewart Collection, Gift of Gallery 91 2009.40A–C

Jerszy Seymour, German, b. 1968, Pipe Dreams Watering Can, 2000, polyethylene.  
Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.48A B
	
Ettore Sottsass, Italian, 1917–2007, Vase, designed 1959, glazed earthenware. The Liliane and David M. 
Stewart Collection, Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.29

Ettore Sottsass, Italian, 1917–2007; Perry A King, British, b.1938; Olivetti, Italian, founded October 29, 
1908, “Valentine” Typewriter (with case), 1969, ABS plastic and other materials. Gift of Eugene D. Silver, 
Rydal, Pennsylvania 2009.57

Philippe Starck, French, b.1949, Les Ministres Centerpiece, 1996, resin and steel.  
Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.44

Philippe Starck, French, b.1949, Dr. Skud Flyswatter (green), 1998, plastic. Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.45

Jerszy Seymour, German, b. 1968

Pipe Dreams Watering Can, 2000 

polyethylene

Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 

2009.48A B
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Philippe Starck, French, b.1949, Dr. Skud Flyswatter (orange), 1998, plastic. Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.46

Philippe Starck, French, b.1949, Dr. Skud Flyswatter (blue), 1998, plastic. Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.47

Philippe Starck, French, b.1949, Pipe Dreams Watering Can, 2000, polyethylene. Gift of Dr. Michael Sze 2009.48A–B

Chinese, Soup Tureen with Lid and Underplate, about 1760, porcelain. Gift of Mr. and Mrs. William A. Wick 2009.50A–C

Chinese, Charger, about 1750, porcelain. Gift of Mr. and Mrs. William A. Wick 2009.51

Wire chair, about 1850, painted metal. Jane Weldon Myers Acquisition Fund 2009.28

European Painting and Sculpture before 1800  

John Constable, British, 1776–1837, The Cornfield, about 1826, oil on canvas. The Clowes Fund Collection 2009.53

Master of Badia a Isola, Italian, active about 1290–1320, Madonna and Child, about 1320, tempera on wood.  
The Clowes Fund Collection 2009.52

Fashion Arts 

Franco Moschino, Italian, 1950–1994, Dress, 1980s, silk. Textile Arts Fund 2009.18

Franco Moschino, Italian, 1950–1994, Dress, 1980s, wool. Textile Arts Fund 2009.19

Franco Moschino, Italian, 1950–1994, Bustier, 1990s, nylon. Textile Arts Fund 2009.21
		
Franco Moschino, Italian, 1950–1994, Jacket, 1991, acetate and rayon. Textile Arts Fund 2009.22

Thierry Mugler, French, b.1948, Dress, 1980s, acetate, rayon, silk. Textile Arts Fund 2009.20
	
Emilio Pucci, Italian, 1914–1992, Dress and Coat, about 1968, nylon tricot. Gift of Murph Damron 2009.25

Emilio Pucci, Italian, 1914–1992, Scarf, about 1968, silk. Gift of Murph Damron 2009.26

American, Wedding Dress, 1936, silk satin. Gift of Gayle R. Atkins in memory of her mother, Elizabeth H. Rogers 2009.23

American, Dress, 1940s, polyester, satin. Gift of Gayle R. Atkins in memory of her mother, Elizabeth H. Rogers 2009.24

Prints, Drawings and Photographs

Josef Albers, American, 1888–1976, Variant VIII, 1966, screenprint on off-white wove paper.  
Bequest of Eldon and Friedy Nyhart 2009.15

Hans Arp, French, 1886–1966, Untitled, Plate II, 1962–1965, color woodblock print on cream wove paper.  
Bequest of Eldon and Friedy Nyhart 2009.13
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Coalport
England 
Tableware Service in the Multi-colored 
Scalloped Indian Tree Pattern
porcelain
122- piece set; various dimensions  
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.10.1-.16

Ernst Bohne Söhne
Germany
Pitcher with Female Figure Handle,  
about 1930
porcelain
6 7/8 x 5 1/4 x 4 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.6

Ernst Bohne Söhne
Germany
Pitcher, Male Mask Form, about 1930
porcelain
5 3/8 x 3 1/4 x 6 3/4 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.7

Ernst Bohne Söhne
Germany
Figurine, about 1930
porcelain
9 x 5 3/4 x 5 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.11

Gebrüder Von Streit Glass Works
Germany 
Sugar Bowls, about 1900
opaque white glass (milk glass)
5 1/2 x 4 x 4 1/4 in. (each)
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.8.1A-B and LH2008.8.2A-B

Meissen Porcelain Manufactory
Germany 
Compote, about 1850
porcelain
10 7/16 x 12 1/4 x 10 1/4 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.2.1

Meissen Porcelain Manufactory
Germany 
Compote, about 1850
porcelain
10 1/2 x 10 1/4 x 10 1/4 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.2.2

William H. Jackson Company
United States
Fire Screen, about 1930
silver-plated brass, steel
35 1/2 x 53 x 1/2 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.1.1

William H. Jackson Company
United States 
Pair of Andirons, about 1930
silver-plated brass, steel
25 3/8 x 10 3/4 x 27 1/2 in. (each)
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly
LH2008.1.2A-B

William H. Jackson Company
United States 
Fire Tools, about 1930
silver-plated brass, steel
base: 27 1/4 x 8 1/2 x 7 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.1.3

France 
Male Cockatoo, about 1930
porcelain
18 3/8 x 7 1/4 x 6 1/2 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.3.1

France 
Female Cockatoo, about 1930
porcelain
17 1/4 x 8 1/2 x 6 3/4 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.3.2

France 
Vase, about 1850
glass, bronze
19 1/2 x 11 1/4 x 8 1/8 in.
Gift of Jane Rauch Kitchen
LH2008.15.1A-B

France 
Vase, about 1850
glass, bronze
19 1/2 x 11 1/4 x 8 1/8 in.
Gift of Jane Rauch Kitchen
LH2008.15.2A-B

France 
Cigarette Box, 1900–1920
glass, brass
4 1/2 x 6 x 4 in.
Bequest of Mr. and  
Mrs. Herman C. Krannert
LH2008.16

France 
Vase, about 1820
porcelain
13 1/2 x 7 x 4 1/2 in.
Gift of Mrs. Joseph E. Cain
LH2008.17.1

France 
Vase, about 1820
porcelain
13 1/2 x 7 x 4 1/2 in.
Gift of Mrs. Joseph E. Cain
LH2008.17.2

United States 
Dining Room Cabinet, about 1930
wood, glass
98 x 51 x 18 7/8 in. (overall)
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.4

United States 
Side Chair, about 1950
wood, upholstery
42 x 22 1/8 x 21 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.5.1

United States 
Side Chair, about 1950
wood, upholstery
42 x 22 1/8 x 21 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.5.2
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United States 
Side Chair, about 1950
wood, upholstery
42 x 22 1/8 x 21 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.5.2

United States
Sofa, about 1930
wood, upholstery
41 1/4 x 77 1/2 x 33 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.9

Figural Group, about 1930
porcelain
8 3/4 x 8 1/2 x 5 7/8 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.12

Figure, about 1910
porcelain
9 1/2 x 4 3/4 x 3 1/2 in.
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.13

Pair of Lustres, about 1880  
glass
H: 11 in. (each) 
Gift of the Children of J.K. Lilly Jr.
LH2008.14.1 and LH2008.14.2

Pair of Lustres, about 1880
glass
H: 14 1/8 in. (each) 
Gift of Mr. Mark Horwitz
LH2008.18.1 and LH2008.18.2

Lilly House
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The following works were lent to other museums and galleries in 2008 or in the first half of 2009 for the exhibitions  

cited in the entries. 

John Baeder, Yankee Clipper, 1974 (76.205)

Ron Kleeman, Johnny Rutherford Cartwheel Series, 1977 (77.298)

Picture Perfect: Photorealism Revisited 

Boca Raton Museum of Art, Boca Raton, Florida 

James Carroll Beckwith, Portrait of William Merritt Chase, 1881–1882 (10.8)

High Society: American Portraits of the Gilded Age

Bucerius Kunst Forum, Hamburg, Germany

Ernest Leonard Blumenschein, Portrait of a German Tragedian, 1907 (41.32)

In Contemporary Rhythm: The Art of Ernest L. Blumenschein

Albuquerque Museum, New Mexico 

Valentin de Boulogne, Rafaello Menicucci, 1630–1632 (56.72)

I marmi vivi; Gian Lorenzo Bernini a la nascita del ritratto barocco  

(Bernini and the Birth of Baroque Portrait Sculpture)

Museo Nazionale del Bargello, Florence, Italy

Dean Byinton, Blue Landscape (Jewels), 2003, (2005.37)

Dean Byington

Frist Center for the Visual Arts, Nashville, Tennessee 

Robert Fulton, Portrait of Joel Barlow, 1805 (64.30)

Bob's Folly: Inventing America's First Steamboat

Clermont State Historic Site, Germantown, New York 

Paul Gauguin, Christmas Night (Blessing of the Oxen), 1902–1903 (1998.169)

Emile Bernard, Yellow Christ, 1889 (1998.171)

Paul Sérusier,  Seaweed Gatherer, about 1890 (1998.181)

Paul Gauguin: Artist of Myth and Dream 

Complesso del Vittoriano, Rome

Vincent van Gogh, Landscape at Saint-Rémy, 1889 (44.74)

Painted with Words: Vincent van Gogh’s Letters to Emile Bernard, 1887–1889

The Morgan Library, New York 

Francisco José de Goya y Lucientes, Portrait of Félix Colón de Larriátegui,  

1794 (75.454)

Legacy: Spain and the United States in the Age of Independence 1763–1848

National Portrait Gallery, Washington, D.C.

Francisco José de Goya y Lucientes,The Sleep of Reason Produces Monsters, Plate 43, 1799 (62.58)

Enrique Chagoya, El sueño de la razon produce monstrous,  

20th century (2001.385F)

Fantasy and Fairy Tales

Ball State University, Muncie, Indiana 
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Claude Monet, The Church of San Giorgio Maggiore, Venice, 1908 (70.76)

Venice: From Canaletto and Turner to Monet 

Fondation Beyeler, Basel, Switzerland

Bruce Nauman, Untitled (Hand Circle), 1996 (1996.248)

Bruce Nauman: Topological Garden

United States Exhibition of the 53rd Venice Biennale (organized by  

the Philadelphia Museum of Art) 

United States Pavilion, Giardini, Venice, Italy 

Georgia O’Keeffe, Pelvis with Distance, 1943 (77.229)

Georgia O’Keeffe: Nature and Abstraction

Vancouver Art Gallery, Vancouver, British Columbia 

Lucien Pissarro, Interior of the Studio, 1887 (1995.100)

Georges Lemmen, The Two Sisters or The Serruys Sisters, 1894 (79.317)

Seurat e Signac

Palazzo Reale, Milan, Italy

Allan Ramsey, Portrait of King George III, about 1762 (66.21B)

Emissaries of Peace: The 1762 Cherokee and British Delegations

The Thomas Gilcrease Institute of American History and Art  

(Gilcrease Museum), Tulsa, Oklahoma

Rembrandt van Rijn, Self-Portrait, about 1629, (C10063)

Rembrandt: Three Faces of the Master

Cincinnati Art Museum, Ohio 

Georges Rouault, Head of a Clown, about 1920 (48.123)

Mystic Masque: Semblance and Reality in Georges Rouault, 1871–1958

McMullen Museum of Art, Boston College, Boston

Adrian Schiess, Malerei, 2006 (2008.184)

Inaugural Exhibition in Modern Wing

The Art Institute of Chicago

John Sloan, Red Kimono on a Roof, 1912 (54.55)

John Sloan’s New York

Westmoreland Museum of American Art, Greensburg, Pennsylvania

Smart Museum, University of Chicago, Chicago

Reynolda House Museum of American Art, Winston Salem, North Carolina

Sasson Soffer, East Gate/West Gate, 1973 (82.56)

Will Hormitt, Spaces with Iron, 1972 (81.220)

Shan Zou Zhou, Portrait of History, 1997 (2001.388)

John Francis Torreano, Mega-Gem, 1989 (1997.6)

Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis (IUPUI)
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Abbott Handerson Thayer, Still Life, about 1886 (36.7)

American Art and the East

Solomon R. Guggenheim Museum, New York 

George Tooker, Mirror III, about 1970–1971 (2006.66)

George Tooker: A Retrospective

National Academy Museum, New York 

Joseph Mallord William Turner, The Fifth Plague of Egypt, 1800 (55.24)

J. M. W. Turner 

National Gallery of Art, Washington, D.C.

Joseph Mallord William Turner, East Cowes Castle, 1828 (71.32) 

Joseph Mallord William Turner, Bothwick Castle, 1818 (72.182)

J. M. W. Turner 

Dallas Museum of Art, Texas

Joseph Mallord William Turner, Fall of the Tees, Yorkshire, 1825–1826 (1997.141)

“Endless Form”: Charles Darwin, Natural Science, and the Visual Arts

Yale Center for British Art, New Haven, Connecticut

Nigerian, Helmet Mask, 1930–1960 (1989.883)

Nigerian, Helmet Mask, 1930–1970 (1989.890)

Inscribing Meaning

Fowler Museum at UCLA, Los Angeles 

Persian, Loom, about 1950s (S2077.77.1)

Take Me There: Egypt

The Children’s Museum of Indianapolis
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Lectures, Talks and Tours  

Urban Greening
Douglas Herr, landscape architect; sup-
ported by the IMA Horticultural Society. 
February 7

A New Look at Old Rooms: The Renova-
tion of the Met’s 18th-century American 
Period Rooms
Amelia Peck, associate curator of 
American decorative arts, Metropolitan 
Museum of Art; presented by the IMA 
Decorative Arts Society. 
February 28 

The Garden in Winter 
Suzy Bales, author; supported by the 
IMA Horticultural Society.
March 2 

Dress as Concept: Curating Fashion  
at LACMA
Sharon S. Takeda and Kaye Spilker,  
co-curators of Breaking the Mode:  
Contemporary Fashion from the  
Permanent Collection of the Los  
Angeles County Museum of Art 
March 15 

Hello Kitty: The Global Brand  
with Nine Lives
Presentation and book-signing with 
Ken Belson, of the New York Times; pre-
sented by the Asian Art Society and the 
Japan-America Society of Indiana. 
March 27 

Artist Talk: Alison Heimstead
Street Theatre: the Art of the Parade 
April 3 

Artist Talk: Lida Abdul 
April 10 

Sustainable Rose Growing 
Peter Kukielski, curator of the Peggy 
Rockefeller Rose Garden and Rose Col-
lections, New York Botanical Garden; 
supported by the IMA Horticultural 
Society. 
April 10 

The Architecture of Nature: A Talk by 
Maya Lin 
Presented in part by the American Insti-
tute of Architects, Indianapolis chapter.
April 29 

Japonisme: Fashion and Folds 
Elizabeth Mix, professor of art history, 
Butler University 
May 1

Street & Elite: the Sartorialist’s World 
of Style 
Scott Schuman, blogger and columnist 
for GQ magazine 
May 8 

Model, Muse or Guinea Pig? (guided 
tour of Breaking the Mode)
Nikki Sutton, Level-Interior Architecture 
+ Design 
May 11 

Moving Forward, Backward and Side-
ways: Artist Nick Cave 
May 29 

Living Forever in Ancient Egypt
Dr. Edward Bleiberg, managing curator 
for Egyptian, Classical, and ancient 
Middle Eastern art, Brooklyn Museum
July 13 

Immortality in Art 
Guided tour of To Live Forever: Egyptian 
Treasures from the Brooklyn Museum 
August 9, 14

Deciphering Egyptian Art
Dr. Emily Teeter, research associate and 
Egyptologist, Oriental Institute, Chicago
August 28 

Image as Art / Image as History: Bill 
Foley on Photography 
September 19
 
Class Pictures: A Conversation with 
Dawoud Bey
with Lisa Freiman, senior curator of 
contemporary art, IMA
September 25

Halston: Making Fashion
Patricia Mears, deputy director and 
curator, Fashion Institute of Technology
October 2 

Conversation Series:  
Museums in a Global Context 
Expanding Community: Relevant Roles 
for Museums in Africa and the United 
States  
Dr. Boureima Diamitani, executive 
director of the West African Museum 
Programme, and Maxwell L. Anderson, 
The Melvin & Bren Simon Director and 
CEO, IMA 
October 9 

Silent Theater of Edward Hopper: A Talk 
by Walter Wells
Underwritten by the Myrtie Shumacker 
Lecture Fund.
October 19 

Preserving America’s Exceptional 
Gardens
Antonia Adezio, executive director of the 
Garden Conservancy; supported by the 
IMA Horticultural Society. 
October 23

Rug Appreciation: What to Look for 
When Collecting Rugs 
Mary Jo Otsea, senior vice president, 
Sotheby’s Rugs and Carpets Division
October 25 

Return to Dragon Mountain with  
Jonathan Spence 
Jonathan Spence, Sterling Professor of 
History Emeritus, Yale University
October 25 

Gallery Tour with Poet Kevin Young 
October 29 
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After Memphis? Design in Europe  
since 1990 
Penny Sparke, professor of design 
history, Kingston University, London; 
presented in part by the Design Arts 
Society with the support of the Myrtie 
Shumacker Lecture Fund. 
October 30

Imagining Place: A Conversation with 
Julie Dash and Joanna Haigood 
Spirit & Place event; presented by the 
IMA and the IUPUI Committee on Afri-
can and African American Studies 
November 5

Life Is Short, Art Is Long 
Spirit & Place event; presented by India-
napolis Art Center, the IMA, University 
of Indianapolis, Center for Aging and 
Community, and WFYI. 
November 6 

Imagining a Global City: Visions of 
Indianapolis and the World 
Spirit & Place event; presented by 
the IMA, Ambassadors for Children, 
Indianapolis-Eldoret Sister City Commit-
tee, International Interfaith Initiative, 
and IU School of Medicine IU-Kenya 
Partnership. 
November 16 

Conversation Series:  
Museums in a Global Context 
Making Waves: Museums and  
Cultural Influence 
James N. Wood, president and CEO of 
the J. Paul Getty Trust, and Maxwell L. 
Anderson, The Melvin & Bren Simon Di-
rector and CEO of the IMA; underwritten 
by the Carl J. Weinhardt Jr. Memorial 
Lecture Fund.  
November 23 

Conversation Series:  
Museums in a Global Context 
Museums, Fame and Money
Axel Rüger, director of the Van Gogh 
Museum, Amsterdam, and Maxwell L. 
Anderson, The Melvin & Bren Simon 
Director and CEO, IMA
December 7 

Delicious Revolution: An Evening with 
Alice Waters
Presented in part by Eagle Creek Park 
Foundation and other partners, with 
support from an anonymous donor. 
December 2

Performances 

Roman Finale: An Afternoon of Opera 
at the IMA 
Indianapolis Opera Ensemble 
January 6 

CJ Jones LIVE
CJ Jones, head of Hands Across Amer-
ica; presented in part by the Indiana 
School for the Deaf. 
May 9 

Summer Solstice: Mare Fecunditatis
Hirokazu Kosaka, artist and Zen archer; 
Oguri, choreographer and Butoh danc-
er; and Emily Corwin, cellist; presented 
in part by the IMA Asian Art Society. 
June 22

Poetry in the Gallery: American Motion
Presented in part by Big Car Gallery
July 10 

Virtuosos & Visions
Cho-Liang Lin, violin, and Min  
Xiao-Fen, pipa
Co-presented by the International 
Violin Competition of Indianapolis with 
support from the Irving Yucheng Lo 
Memorial Asian Department Fund and 
the Indianapolis Cultural Development 
Commission. 
November 21 

Chinese Theatre Works:  
Shadow Puppetry 
The Birth of Monkey King 
December 28 

Films

The Act of Seeing with One’s Own Eyes 
(1971, dir. Stan Brakhage)
January 10 

The Namesake  
(2006, dir. Mira Nair)
January 17

Naked World  
(2003, dir. Arlene Donnelly Nelson) 
January 31

Africa—Challenge and Hope:  
A Film Series
Bamako (2006, dir. Abderrahmane 
Sissako), February 7; Indigènes (2006, 
dir. Rachid Bouchareb), February 21; 
Iron Ladies of Liberia (2007, dir. Daniel 
Junge and Siatta Scott Johnson)  
February 28 

Campecine 2008: 
An Interactive Film Festival  
May 17 and September 26–27

The Fifth Element  
(1997, dir. Luc Besson) 
May 30 

Kerouac Lives: A Visual Tribute 
On the Road Now: Artists and Writers 
Respond to Kerouac in the 21st Century
with introduction by Jim Canary, curator 
at Lilly Library, Indiana University 
July 17  

Robert Frank (Film Marathon) 
Pull My Daisy (1959)  
Me and My Brother (1969)  
Conversations in Vermont (1971) 
Life Dances On (1980) 
Energy and How to Get It (1981)  
This Song for Jack (1983).
August 17 
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Cine Latino (film series)
Golpe de Estadio  
(1999, dir. Sergio Cabrera, Columbia) 
September 4  
Eu Tu Eles  
(2000, dir. Andrucha Waddington, 
Brazil)
September 11 
La Zona  
(2007, dir. Rodrigo Plá, Mexico)
September 18
Encarnación 
(2007, dir. Anahí Berneri, Argentina)
September 25

Eres mi héroe  
(2004, dir. Antonio Cuadri) 
November 7 

Crouching Tiger, Hidden Dragon  
(2000, dir. Ang Lee) 
November 22

One-Two Punch (film series)
Idiocracy  
(2006, dir. Mike Judge) and  
Brazil (1985, dir. Terry Gilliam),  
November 29 
 
What’s Eating Gilbert Grape?  
(1993, dir. Lasse Hallstrom) and  
Benny & Joon  
(1993, dir. Jeremiah Chechik) 
December 2 
 
Chinatown  
(1974, dir. Roman Polanski) and  
Who Framed Roger Rabbit?  
(1988, dir. Robert Zemeckis) 
January 31 
M (1931, dir. Fritz Lang) and  
M (2007, dir. Myung-se Lee) 
February 28 

Black Orpheus 
(1959, Marcel Camus) and  
William Shakespeare’s Romeo + Juliet 
(1996, dir. Baz Luhrmann) 
March 28

Herb and Dorothy  
(2008, dir. Megumi Sasaki) 
December 11 

Princess Mononoke  
(1997, dir. Hayao Miyazaki) 
December 26 

Little Fugitive  
(1953, dir. Morris Engel) 
December 30 

Family Programs 

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.  
Day Celebration
January 21

Star Studio Sneak Peek & Demo
Robert J. Lang, master origami artist
February 16

D.I.Y. (Design It Yourself) Saturday
Ellen Lupton, co-author of D.I.Y. Kids
February 16

Family Saturday
On Procession
Activities for all ages related to the exhi-
bition and parade On Procession
April 19 

Parade Day Family Art Activities 
April 26 

Family Saturday
To Live Forever
Activities for all ages related to the 
exhibition.
August 9 

Power, Glory and Art  . . . Oh My!
Tour and activities related to the exhibi-
tion Power and Glory: Court Arts of 
China’s Ming Dynasty
November 22

Winter Solstice 
December 18 

Chinese Theatre Works
Shadow Puppetry Workshop
December 28 
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PUBLIC PROGRAMS JANUARY–JUNE 2009

Lectures, Talks and Tours  

New Light on Great Brightness: Arts of 
the Ming Dynasty Then and Now 
Craig Clunas, Oxford University; sup-
ported by the IMA Asian Art Society. 
January 8 

Healing Art: The Amazing Story of  
the Wishard Hospital Murals 
Harriet Warkel, IMA curator, and Linda 
Witkowski and Christina McConnell,  
IMA conservators
January 22 

Shaping a New Century: A Two-Day 
International Design Symposium
Supported in part by the Myrtie 
Shumacker Lecture Fund, the Consul-
ate General of the Federal Republic of 
Germany, Chicago, and the Consulate 
General of Switzerland, Chicago. 
March 6–7

The Art of Healing: Where Healthcare 
and Creativity Blend
Dean Craig Brater, IU School of  
Medicine;  Dr. Larry Cripe, oncologist  
at the IU Simon Cancer Center; and 
Jan Lucas-Grimm
March 8 

Tried and True! Proven Perennials from 
the Chicago Botanic Garden’s Trials
Richard Hawke, plant evaluation  
manager, Chicago Botanic  
Garden;  supported by the IMA  
Horticultural Society.
April 2 

Pointillism to Picasso: Post-Impression-
ism and the Development  
of Modernism (tour) 
April 4 

Director’s Conversation Series: 
MoMA’s Moves
Glenn D. Lowry, director of MoMA, and 
Maxwell L. Anderson, The Melvin & Bren 
Simon Director and CEO of the IMA.
Supported in part by the Carl J. Wein-
hardt Jr. Memorial Lecture Fund.
April 9

After Love, After Punk:  
Takashi Murakami and the  
Contemporary Japanese Dreamscape
Dick Hebdige, director of arts and  
interdisciplinary programs, Palm  
Desert Graduate Center, University of  
California, Riverside
April 23 

Director’s Conversation Series:  
A New Guggenheim
Richard Armstrong, director of the Solo-
mon R. Guggenheim Foundation, and 
Maxwell L. Anderson, The Melvin & Bren 
Simon Director and CEO of the IMA
April 30 

Artist Talk: Eve Sussman
Surveillance as a Narrative Device  
in the Motion Pictures of  
the Rufus Corporation 
May 21

Talk: The Target Aesthetic 
Jeff Carter, senior designer, Target 
Corporation 
June 4
 

Performances 

Improv Percussionist Tatsuya Nakatani
January 15

Koto Sound Team Kyara: Classic to 
Contemporary 
With Shozo Sato, tea master, artist and 
scholar. Copresented by the Japan-
America Society of Indiana. 
March 27

Fuzzy Sound Collage with Beatrix*JAR
April 16 

Fear and Trembling: A Vladmaster 
Visual Experience 
Vladimir, artist 
June 18 

Films  

Winter Nights (film series) 
Unforgiven (1992, dir. Clint Eastwood), 
January 2; The Maltese Falcon (1941, dir. 
John Huston), January 9; La Dolce Vita 
(1960, dir. Federico Fellini), January 16; 
The Bank Dick (1940, dir. Edward F. Cline)  
and The Dentist (1932, dir. Leslie Pierce), 
January 24; The Seven Samurai (1954, dir. 
Akira Kurosawa), January 30; Breathless 
(1970, dir. Jean-Luc Godard), February 6; 
Blade Runner: The Final Cut (2007, dir.  
Ridley Scott), February 13; The General 
(1927, dir. Clyde Bruckman and Buster 
Keaton), with music by the Indianapolis 
Chamber Orchestra, February 20; Lolita 
(1962, dir. Stanley Kubrick), February 27.

Vintage Japanese Anime
January 3 

Emergence: A Screen Zenith  
(Film Series) 
4 Months, 3 Weeks and 2 Days (dir. Cristian 
Mungiu), January 10; Talk to Her (2002, 
dir. Pedro Almodóvar), January 24; Travel-
ling with Pets (2007, dir. Vera Storozheva), 
February 14; Thirsty, Thirsty (2008, dir. 
Hyeon-gi Hong), February 21; Le Scaphan-
dre et Le Papillon / The Diving Bell and 
The Butterfly (2007, dir. Julian Schnabel), 
March 14; Vanaja (2006, dir. Rajnesh 
Domalpalli), March 21. 

Race in America (Film Series) 
Crash (2004, dir. Paul Haggis), February 5; 
Harold & Kumar Escape from Guantanamo 
Bay (2008, dir. Jon Hurwitz and Hayden 
Schlossberg), February 12; Skins (2002, 
dir. Chris Eyre), February 19.

Sunrise: A Song of Two Humans (1926, dir. 
W.F. Murnau) and Light Is Calling (2004, 
dir. Bill Morrison) 
February 8 

Filmmaking Dialogue with Julie Dash 
February 21 
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DocNight: Eco-Documentary Series 
Garbage Warrior (2007, dir. Olive 
Hodge) March 13, co-presented by AIA 
Indianapolis; Our Daily Bread (2005, 
dir. Nikolaus Geyrhalter) March 20, co-
presented by the Hoosier Environmental 
Council; Manufactured Landscapes 
(2006, dir. Jennifer Baichwal) 
March 27, co-presented by the Indiana 
Recycling Coalition.

Get Shorts (film series) 
Peur(s) du Noir (2007, various direc-
tors), March 15; Stop-Motion Animation 
Pioneers, introduced by film historian 
Eric Grayson, March 22; Pioneering 
African Animation, with Cilia Swadogo, 
March 29. 

Densha Otoko  
Copresented by the Japan-America 
Society of Indiana 
March 19

Hella Jongerius: Contemporary Arche-
types  (2009, dir. Amie Knox, 25 min.)
World premiere of documentary short 
about the Dutch designer, with discus-
sion by curators R. Craig Miller (IMA), 
Paola Antonelli (Museum of Modern 
Art), and manufacturers of her designs 
(Rolf Fehlbaum of Vitra). Presented by 
the IMA Design Arts Society and the 
Herron School of Art and Design-IUPUI 
and supported by the Evans Woollen 
Memorial Lecture Fund.
Thursday, April 2

Objectified (2009, dir. Gary Hustwit)
With Gary Hustwit
Copresented by the Industrial Design 
Society of America, Indiana Chapter. 
Supported by the Evans Woollen Memo-
rial Lecture Fund.
Thursday, May 14

Family Programs 

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day  
Celebration 
Special performance of The Music, Mar-
tin & Me, conceived by artist Bill Myers  
for the IMA. 
January 19

D.I.Y. (Design It Yourself) Saturday 
Hands Alive!
Activities and tours presented in part-
nership with Indiana School for the Deaf 
and Ellen Lupton, co-author of D.I.Y. 
Kids. 
March 21

Star(lite) 
A new series of free drop-in art-making 
projects for all ages, inspired by works of 
art in the IMA’s permanent collection. 
Saturdays, May 9–July 25
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  2 

Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(In Thousands) 

 
 

Assets  2007
(As Adjusted - 

2009 Note 9)

Cash and cash equivalents  $             1,376  $             3,815 
Accounts receivable                    129                    236 
Contributions receivable               17,052               21,936 
Government grant reimbursements receivable                    314                      73 
Inventories                    548                    650 
Prepaid expenses                    245                    379 
Investments             296,839             392,726 
Assets held in charitable lead trusts                    304                    389 
Unamortized bond issue costs                    904                    953 
Library accessions                    901                    844 
Property and equipment             129,659             133,949 
Collections - Note 1                         -                         - 

Total assets $         448,271 $         555,950 

Liabilities
Accounts payable  $                662  $             1,637 
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits                    859                    796 
Obligation under capital lease                      84                    118 
Accrued pension expense                 2,954                 2,318 
Liability for charitable gift annuities and lead trusts                    428                    393 
Deferred revenue                    132                         - 
Other liabilities                    709                    985 
Fair value of interest rate swap                         -                    392 
Tax exempt bonds payable             122,600             125,000 

Total liabilities             128,428             131,639 

Net Assets
Unrestricted               86,110             132,411 
Temporarily restricted             117,517             182,303 
Permanently restricted             116,216             109,597 

Total net assets             319,843             424,311 

Total liabilities and net assets $         448,271 $         555,950 

 
 



See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 3 

Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Consolidated Statement of Activities  

Eighteen Months Ended June 30, 2009 
(In Thousands) 

 
 

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Revenue, Gains and Other Support
Gifts, grants and memberships

Annual giving  $                    2,460  $                            -  $                            -  $                    2,460 
Contributions                        1,636                      12,625                        6,619                      20,880 
Grants                           525                           604                                -                        1,129 

Revenue from activities
Admissions, fees and miscellaneous sales                        5,729                                -                                -                        5,729 

Investment return designated for current operations 
and art acquisitions                      12,481                      26,158                                -                      38,639 

                     22,831                      39,387                        6,619                      68,837 
Net assets released from restrictions                      30,977                    (30,977)                                -                                - 

Total revenue, gains and other support                      53,808                        8,410                        6,619                      68,837 

Expenses
Curatorial                      27,955                                -                                -                      27,955 
Educational                      14,769                                -                                -                      14,769 
Horticultural                        1,618                                -                                -                        1,618 
Museum stores                        3,719                                -                                -                        3,719 

Total program services                      48,061                                -                                -                      48,061 
Management and general                        6,693                                -                                -                        6,693 
Fund raising                           842                                -                                -                           842 
Membership development                        1,042                                -                                -                        1,042 

Total expenses                      56,638                                -                                -                      56,638 

Change in Net Assets From Operations                      (2,830)                        8,410                        6,619                      12,199 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Investment return less than amounts designated for 

current operations and art acquisitions                    (42,204)                    (71,020)                                -                  (113,224)
Changes in accumulated postretirement benefits

arising during the period                        2,252                                -                                -                        2,252 
Amortization included in net periodic pension cost                      (2,791)                                -                                -                      (2,791)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement                           392                                -                                -                           392 
Proceeds from sales of art                                -                           605                                -                           605 
Purchases of art                      (3,901)                                -                                -                      (3,901)
Released from restriction - art acquisition                        2,781                      (2,781)                                -                                - 

Change in Net Assets                    (46,301)                    (64,786)                        6,619                  (104,468)

Net Assets, December 31, 2007, as previously reported                    278,749                      35,965                    109,597                    424,311 

Change in Accounting Principle                  (146,338)                    146,338                                -                                - 

Net Assets, December 31, 2007, as adjusted                    132,411                    182,303                    109,597                    424,311 

Net Assets, June 30, 2009 $                  86,110 $                117,517  $                116,216 $                319,843 

2009
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows  
Eighteen Months Ended June 30, 2009 

(In Thousands) 
 
 

Operating Activities
Change in net assets $        (104,468)
Items not requiring (providing) cash

Depreciation and amortization of bond issue costs                8,961 
Non-cash contributions               (1,991)
Acquisition and sales of art, net                3,296 
Contributions restricted for long-term investment             (19,246)
Realized losses on investments              24,020 
Unrealized losses on investments              54,247 
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement                  (392)

Changes in
Accounts receivable                  (134)
Contributions receivable                4,884 
Prepaid expenses and other assets                   239 
Accounts payable                  (636)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities                   590 

Net cash used in operating activities $          (30,630)

Investing Activities
Acquisitions of art               (3,901)
Proceeds from sale of art                   605 
Purchases of property and equipment               (4,016)
Purchases of investments           (489,960)
Sales and maturities of investments            508,651 

Net cash provided by investing activities              11,379 

Financing Activities
Proceeds from contributions restricted for

Investment in endowment                9,614 
Investment in art and property and equipment                3,855 
Investment subject to annuity and trust agreements                   101 
Investment subject to various purchases                5,676 
Payments on capital lease obligations                    (34)
Retirement of bonds               (2,400)

Net cash provided by financing activities              16,812 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents               (2,439)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31, 2007                3,815 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2009 $             1,376 

Supplemental Information
Interest paid $             3,893 
Property and equipment in accounts payable                   158 

2009
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

General 

Indianapolis Museum of Art (Museum) was incorporated as a not-for-profit organization in May 
1892, under the laws of the State of Indiana. 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Indianapolis Museum of Art and 
Oldfields, LLC, its wholly owned subsidiary.  Oldfields, LLC was established during 2004 to hold 
certain real estate.  The consolidated financial statements also include the Museum’s affiliated 
organizations:  Alliance of the Indianapolis Museum of Art, EthnoArt Society, the Contemporary 
Art Society, the Decorative Arts Society, the Horticultural Society and the Asian Art Society.  The 
affiliated organizations are special interest groups within the Museum membership which operate 
for the benefit of the Museum donating cash and services of volunteers to various Museum 
activities.  No amounts are included in the consolidated financial statements for services of 
volunteers. 

The Museum provides art education opportunities for its members and the general public through 
the acquisition, preservation and exhibition of its permanent collections.  The Museum's primary 
sources of revenue and support are contributions and earnings on investments. 

Fiscal Year Change 

During 2008, the Museum changed its fiscal year to June 30 from December 31.  The change was 
effective for the period ended June 30, 2009.  These consolidated financial statements present the 
changes in net assets and cash flows of the Museum for the eighteen-month period ended June 30, 
2009. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues, 
expenses, gains, losses and other changes in net assets during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Museum has been limited by donors to 
a specific time period or purpose.  Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors 
to be maintained by the Museum in perpetuity. 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Museum considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents.  At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007, cash equivalents consisted primarily 
of money market funds.   

The financial institution holding the Museum’s cash accounts is participating in the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) Transaction Account Guarantee Program.  Under that 
program, through June 30, 2010, all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully guaranteed 
by the FDIC for the entire amount in the account.  

Effective October 3, 2008, the FDIC’s insurance limits increased to $250,000.  The increase in 
federally insured limits is currently set to expire December 31, 2013.  At June 30, 2009, the 
Museum’s interest-bearing cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by approximately 
$756,000. 

Investments and Investment Return 

Investments are carried at fair value.  For those investments without quoted market prices, the fair 
value was provided by the managers of the investments funds.  These estimated values are subject 
to uncertainty, and therefore, may differ significantly from the value that would have been used had 
a market for such investments existed.  Such difference could be material.  Investment return 
includes dividend, interest and other investment income and realized and unrealized gains and 
losses. 

Investment return is reflected in the consolidated statement of activities as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted or permanently restricted based upon the existence and nature of any donor or legally 
imposed restrictions. 

The Museum maintains pooled investment accounts for its endowments.  Investment income and 
realized and unrealized gains and losses from securities in the pooled investment accounts are 
allocated quarterly to the individual endowments based on the relationship of the fair value of the 
interest of each endowment to the total fair value of the pooled investment accounts, as adjusted for 
additions to or deductions from those accounts. 

Property and Equipment 

Expenditures for property and equipment and items which substantially increase the useful lives of 
existing assets are capitalized at cost.  The Museum provides for depreciation on the straight-line 
method at rates designed to depreciate the costs of assets over estimated useful lives as follows: 

Furnishings and equipment 10 years 
Buildings and grounds 50 years 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007 
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Collections - Art Objects 

According to the Museum’s policy, collections include all works of art, historical treasures, library 
accessions and similar assets that are (a) held for public service rather than financial gain, (b) 
protected, kept unencumbered, cared for and preserved, and (c) subject to the Museum’s policy that 
requires the proceeds of items that are sold to be used to acquire other items for collections.  The 
collections, which have been acquired through purchases and contributions since the Museum’s 
inception, are not recognized as an asset on the statement of financial position.  Purchases of 
collection items are recorded as decreases in unrestricted net assets in the year in which the items 
are acquired, or as temporarily or permanently restricted net assets if the assets used to purchase the 
items are restricted by donors.  Proceeds from deaccessions or insurance recoveries, if any, are 
reflected as increases in the appropriate net asset class.   

Income Taxes 

The Museum is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal 
Revenue Code.  The Museum is not considered to be a private foundation.   

Uncertain Tax Positions 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position No. FIN 48-3, the 
Museum has elected to defer the effective date of FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), 
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, until its fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.  The 
Museum has continued to account for any uncertain tax positions in accordance with literature that 
was authoritative immediately prior to the effective date of FIN 48, such as FASB Statement 
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and FASB Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. 

Contributions Receivable 

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenues or gains in the period received and as 
assets, decreases of liabilities or expenses depending on the form of the benefits received. 

Support and Revenue 

The Museum reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with 
donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.  When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated 
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  Gifts and investment income that are 
originally restricted by the donor and for which the restriction is met in the same time period are 
recorded as temporarily restricted and then released from restriction. 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Donated Property and Equipment 

The Museum reports gifts of land, buildings and equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit 
donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.  Gifts of long-lived assets with 
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that 
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.  Absent explicit donor 
stipulations regarding how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the Museum reports 
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in 
service. 

Government Grants 

Support funded by grants is recognized as the Museum performs the contracted services under 
grant agreements.  Grant revenue is recognized as earned as the eligible expenses are incurred.  
Grant expenditures are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of 
such audit, adjustments could be required. 

Functional Expenses 

Expenses have been classified as program services, management and general, fund raising and 
membership development based on the actual direct expenditures and cost allocations based upon 
estimates of space occupied by Museum personnel. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 22, 2009, which is the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the December 31, 2007 financial statements to conform 
to the June 30, 2009 financial statement presentation.  These reclassifications had no effect on the 
change in net assets. 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 2: Contributions Receivable 

Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted Total

Due within one year  $             1,037  $             3,016  $             4,053 
Due in one to five years                    735                 2,000                 2,735 
Due in more than five years               10,696               12,682               23,378 

              12,468               17,698               30,166 
Discount                (5,719)                (7,220)              (12,939)
Allowance                   (175)                         -                   (175)

$             6,574 $           10,478  $           17,052 

June 30, 2009

 

 

Temporarily Permanently
Restricted Restricted Total

Due within one year  $             2,142  $             3,166  $             5,308 
Due in one to five years                 1,385                 5,499                 6,884 
Due in more than five years               11,493               13,282               24,775 

              15,020               21,947               36,967 
Discount                (6,382)                (8,474)              (14,856)
Allowance                   (175)                         -                   (175)

$             8,463 $           13,473  $           21,936 

December 31, 2007

 

Discount rates ranged from 0.75 to 8.2 percent in 2009 and 1.7 to 8.2 in 2007. 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 3: Investments 

The fair value of the Museum’s investments are as follows: 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Savings accounts  $                  112  $                  289 
Certificates of deposit                      331                      353 
Short-term investments                 30,028                 47,882 
U.S. Government securities                   1,448                   3,762 
Corporate bonds                   2,965                           - 
Corporate stocks                 41,189                 78,308 
Mutual funds

Equity - domestic                      456                           - 
Equity - international                 41,305                 75,679 
Fixed income                 32,331                 57,536 

Alternative investments
Marketable alternatives                 85,842                 71,436 
Inflation hedging                 39,521                 42,821 
Private equity/Venture capital                 19,291                 12,640 

Real estate held for investment                   2,020                   2,020 

Total $           296,839  $           392,726 
 

The following schedule summarize the investment return and its classification in the consolidated 
statement of activities for the eighteen month period ended June 30, 2009: 

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Dividends and interest (net of expenses of $2,267)  $           1,206  $           2,476  $         3,682 
Net realized losses on investments             (7,731)           (16,289)         (24,020)
Net unrealized losses on investments           (23,198)           (31,049)         (54,247)

Total return on investments           (29,723)           (44,862)         (74,585)
Investment return designated for

Current operations           (12,329)           (25,317)         (37,646)
Art acquisitions                (152)                (841)              (993)

Investment return less than amounts designated  
for current operations and art acquisitions $       (42,204) $       (71,020) $   (113,224)

2009
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 4: Property and Equipment 

The Museum’s property and equipment are as follows: 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Buildings and grounds  $           153,924  $           150,259 
Furnishings and equipment                 18,134                 17,661 
Land improvements                 12,349                 12,332 

              184,407               180,252 
Accumulated depreciation                (58,466)                (49,553)

              125,941               130,699 
Land                      922                      922 
Construction in progress                   2,796                   2,328 

$           129,659  $           133,949 
 

 

Note 5: Tax Exempt Bonds Payable 

During 2001, the Indiana Development Finance Authority (the Authority) issued Variable Rate 
Demand Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds amounting to $30,000,000, the proceeds of which 
were loaned to the Museum in order to finance and reimburse all or a portion of the costs of the 
acquisition, construction, installation, rehabilitation, renovation or enlargement of land, site 
improvements, infrastructure improvements, buildings, structures, machinery, equipment, 
furnishings or facilities comprising or being functionally related to the operation of the Museum.  
The bonds are due February 1, 2036, and are secured by a letter of credit. 

During 2002, the Authority issued an additional $44,000,000 of Variable Rate Demand Educational 
Facilities Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to the Museum to continue the 
construction projects noted above.  These bonds are due February 1, 2037, and are also secured by 
a letter of credit.  During 2009, the Museum made a principal payment of $2,400,000.  The 
outstanding balance at June 30, 2009 is $41,600,000. 

During 2004, the Authority issued an additional $51,000,000 of Variable Rate Demand Educational 
Facilities Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to the Museum to continue the 
construction projects noted above.  These bonds are due February 1, 2039, and are also secured by 
a letter of credit. 

The bonds are subject to remarketing agreements.  In the event of a remarketing failure, the bonds 
would be repaid through a draw on the letter of credit.  The interest rate applicable to such a loan 
would be prime rate, and would be in effect until the bonds could be remarketed.  In the event the 
bonds could not be remarketed, repayment of the advance could be deferred until the earlier of 
180 days or maturity of the letter of credit.  The letters of credit expire September 15, 2011. 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Under the Indenture, the bond issues may operate in one or more of four Modes of Operation 
provided that certain requirements are met.  The four modes generally have different operating 
features, including different demand features, purchase features, redemption provisions, interest 
periods and interest payment dates.  At June 30, 2009, the bonds were operating under the floating 
rate mode whereby the interest rate is adjusted weekly and interest is payable monthly.  At June 30, 
2009, the interest rate on these bonds was 2.5%. 

Costs associated with executing the loan and other agreements with the aforementioned parties 
have been classified as unamortized bond issue costs in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements and are amortized over the life of the bonds using a method that approximates the level 
yield method. 

The bonds are subject to certain covenants, including a financial coverage ratio.  At June 30, 2009, 
the Museum failed to meet its coverage requirement but received a waiver for this covenant 
violation. 

 

Note 6: Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods: 

December 31,
2007

June 30, (As Adjusted - 
2009 Note 9)

Program Activities
Art purchases $               5,680  $             10,556 
Library accessions                     265                      496 
Educational outreach program                     278                      543 
Other program activities                  3,780                   4,223 

Facility operations and personnel                18,440                 11,568 
Unappropriated endowment earnings                82,386               146,338 
For periods after June 30, 2009                  6,688                   8,579 

$           117,517  $           182,303 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007  
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 7: Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to: 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Investment in perpetuity, the income of which is expendable
 to support
Art purchases  $             19,625  $             20,010 
Library accessions                      368                      368 
Educational program activities                      479                      475 
Other program activities                   4,917                   3,556 
Facility operations and personnel                 12,744                   9,110 
Any activity of the Museum                 78,083                 76,078 

$           116,216  $           109,597 
 

 

Note 8: Net Assets Released From Restrictions 

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted 
purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors. 

2009
Purpose restrictions accomplished

Curatorial program expenses  $                583 
Educational program expenses                    427 
Other program expenses                 1,919 

Time restrictions expired - passage of time               28,048 
              30,977 

Art acquisition and gifts of long-lived assets                 2,781 

 $           33,758 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007 
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 9: Endowment 

During the eighteen-month period ended June 30, 2009, the Museum adopted the recognition and 
disclosure provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position FAS 117-1, 
Endowments of Not-for-Profit Organizations:  Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an 
Enacted Version of the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act, and Enhanced 
Disclosures for All Endowment Funds (FSP FAS 117-1).  This new standard changes the method of 
classification of net assets comprising donor-restricted endowment funds when the Museum is 
subject to an enacted and effective version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act (UPMIFA).  Initial application of FSP FAS 117-1 by reclassification of net assets at 
December 31, 2007, resulted in an increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted and a decrease in 
unrestricted net assets of $146,338,000 and $(146,338,000), respectively, and had no impact on 
previously reported total net assets.   

As
Previously Effect of As
Reported Change Adjusted

Statement of Financial Position
Unrestricted net assets $         278,749 $        (146,338)  $         132,411 
Temporarily restricted net assets               35,965             146,338             182,303  

The Museum’s endowment consists of approximately 120 individual funds established for a variety 
of purposes.  The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds 
designated by the governing body to function as endowments (board-designated endowment 
funds).  Temporarily restricted board-designated endowment funds include funds with purpose or 
time restrictions that the board has designated to function as endowment funds.  As required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), net assets 
associated with endowment funds, including board-designated endowment funds, are classified and 
reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
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Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007 
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

The Museum’s governing body has interpreted the State of Indiana Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (SPMIFA) as requiring preservation of the fair value of the original gift as 
of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the 
contrary.  As a result of this interpretation, the Museum classifies as permanently restricted net 
assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of 
subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment 
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the 
accumulation is added to the fund.  The remaining portion of donor-restricted endowment funds is 
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure 
by the Museum in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA.  In 
accordance with SPMIFA, the Museum considers the following factors in making a determination 
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 

1. Duration and preservation of the fund 
2. Purposes of the Museum and the fund 
3. General economic conditions 
4. Possible effect of inflation and deflation 
5. Expected total return from investment income and appreciation or depreciation of 

investments 
6. Other resources of the Museum 
7. Investment policies of the Museum 

 
The composition of net assets by type of endowment fund at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 
2007, was: 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $            (5,227) $           82,386 $         105,738 $         182,897 
Board-designated endowment funds              90,039              20,522                        -            110,561 

Total endowment funds $           84,812 $         102,908 $         105,738 $         293,458 

June 30, 2009

 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds  $                     -  $         146,338  $           96,124  $         242,462 
Board-designated endowment funds             129,818               21,560                         -             151,378 

Total endowment funds $         129,818 $         167,898 $           96,124 $         393,840 

December 31, 2007

 



 16 

Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007 
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Changes in endowment net assets for the period ended June 30, 2009, were: 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, 
December 31, 2007  $         129,818  $         167,898  $           96,124  $         393,840 

Investment return
Investment income                 1,136                 2,476                         -                 3,612 
Net depreciation              (30,877)              (47,249)                         -              (78,126)

Total investment return              (29,741)              (44,773)                         -              (74,514)

Contributions                    940                 5,941                 9,614               16,495 
Removal of board designation                (3,724)                         -                         -                (3,724)
Appropriation of endowment assets for 

expenditure              (12,481)              (26,158)                         -              (38,639)

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2009 $           84,812 $         102,908 $         105,738 $         293,458 

2009

 
Amounts of donor-restricted endowment funds classified as permanently and temporarily restricted 
net assets at June 30, 2009, consisted of: 

2009

Permanently restricted net assets - portion of perpetual 
endowment funds required to be retained permanently by 
explicit donor stipulation or SPMIFA  $         105,738 

Temporarily restricted net assets - portion of perpetual 
endowment funds subject to a time restriction under SPMIFA
With purpose restrictions  $           20,522 
Without purpose restrictions               82,386 

 $         102,908 
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From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment 
funds may fall below the level the Museum is required to retain as a fund of perpetual duration 
pursuant to donor stipulation or SPMIFA.  In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature 
are reported in unrestricted net assets and aggregated $5,227,000 at June 30, 2009.  These 
deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after investment of 
new permanently restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain purposes that was 
deemed prudent by the governing body. 

The Museum has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding for current operations, capital additions and artifact 
acquisitions supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the 
endowment.  Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted endowment funds the 
Museum must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified periods, as well as those of board-
designated endowment funds.  Under the Museum’s policies, endowment assets are invested in a 
manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the spending rate plus inflation.  The 
Museum expects its endowment funds to provide an average rate of return of approximately 8.5% 
annually over time.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount. 

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Museum relies on a total return strategy in 
which investment returns are achieved through both current yield (investment income such as 
dividends and interest) and capital appreciation (both realized and unrealized).  The Museum 
targets a diversified asset allocation to assure no single security, class of securities or individual 
investment will have a disproportionate negative impact on the Endowment’s overall return. 

The Museum has a policy (the spending policy) of appropriating for current operations each year 
5.5% of its endowment fund’s average fair value for the 12 quarters ending June 30 of the previous 
year.  For the eighteen-month period ended June 30, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2007, 
the Board of Governors approved a temporary increase in the spending rate to support current 
operations.  Based on the 12-quarter average market value, the approved spending rates for the 
periods were 8.4% and 8.5%.  In establishing this policy, the Museum considered the long-term 
expected return on its endowment.  Accordingly, over the long term, the Museum expects the 
current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of 3% annually.  This is 
consistent with the Museum’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of endowment assets 
held in perpetuity or for a specified term, as well as to provide additional real growth through new 
gifts and investment return. 

For the separate funds in the art endowment, 5 percent of the average market value of such funds 
for the 12 quarters ending June 30 of the previous year is appropriated to support art acquisitions. 

 



 18 

Indianapolis Museum of Art 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  

June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007 
(Table Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 

 
 

Note 10: Employee Benefits 

The Museum has a defined-contribution employee's retirement savings plan covering all full-time 
employees meeting certain eligibility requirements.  The Museum makes contributions to the plan 
to match employee contributions and pays the cost of administering the plan.  Employee benefit 
expense under this plan was $772,000 for 2009. 

The Museum also has a noncontributory defined-benefit pension plan covering substantially all of 
its employees.  In 2007, the Museum changed its method of accounting for this plan by adopting 
the provisions of SFAS 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans.  Additionally, the statement requires the measurement date to be as of the 
balance sheet date for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008.  For the period ended June 30, 
2009, the measurement date of the plan was June 30, 2009. 

Effective December 31, 2007, the Museum froze the defined-benefit plan and discontinued accrual 
of future benefits.  Because the Museum used a September 30 measurement date for the plan for  
the year ended December 31, 2007, curtailment expense of $118,000 is recognized in the period 
ended June 30, 2009.  The Museum’s funding policy is to make the minimum annual contribution 
that is required by applicable regulations, plus such amounts as the Museum may determine to be 
appropriate from time to time.  The amount the Museum expects to contribute to the plan in 2010 
has not yet been determined. 

Information about the plan’s funded status follows: 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Projected benefit obligation  $               7,968  $               9,558 
Fair value of plan assets                   5,014                   7,240 

Funded status $              (2,954)  $              (2,318)
 

Liabilities recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position. 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Accrued pension expense $               2,954  $               2,318 
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The amount recognized in unrestricted net assets not yet recognized as components of net periodic 
benefit cost is a net loss of $2,531,000 and $1,991,000 as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007, 
respectively.  The accumulated benefit obligation was approximately $7,968,000 as of June 30, 
2009 and $7,763,000 as of December 31, 2007. 

Other significant balances, costs are for the eighteen-month period: 

2009

Benefit cost  $                  136 
Employer contribution                        39 
Benefits paid                      560  

The following amounts have been recognized in the consolidated statement of activities for the 
eighteen-month period ended June 30, 2009: 

2009
Amounts arising during the period:

Net gain  $               2,134 
Net prior service cost                      118 

Amounts reclassified as components of net periodic benefit
cost of the period:
Net loss                  (2,802)
Net prior service cost                        11 

 $                 (539)

 
The estimated net loss for the defined-benefit pension plans that will be amortized from 
unrestricted net assets into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $122,000. 

Significant assumptions include: 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations:
Discount rate 6.20% 6.02%
Rate of compensation increase                         -   4.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit costs:
Discount rate 6.02% 5.75%
Expected return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%  
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The Museum has estimated the long-term rate of return on plan assets based primarily on historical 
returns on plan assets, adjusted for changes in target portfolio allocations and recent changes in 
long-term interest rates based on publicly available information. 

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected 
to be paid as of June 30, 2009. 

2010  $                  314 
2011                      322 
2012                      350 
2013                      383 
2014                      423 
2015 - 2019                   2,698  

Plan assets are held by a bank-administered trust fund, which invests the plan assets in accordance 
with the provisions of the plan agreement.  The plan agreement permits investment in common and 
preferred stocks, bonds, debentures, mortgages, certain notes of indebtedness or ownership, U.S. 
Government, State, and certain municipal securities, share or savings accounts in any bank, savings 
and loan or building and loan, any common trust fund, any group trust, any pooled fund, certain 
insurance contracts, and real, personal and mixed properties of all kinds. 

Asset allocation is primarily based on strategy to provide stable earnings while still permitting the 
plans to recognize potentially higher returns through a limited investment in equity securities.  The 
target asset allocation percentages for 2009 are as follows: 

Range

Equity securities 60 - 70%
Debt securities 25 - 35%
Other 0 - 10%  

At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2007, plan assets by category are as follows: 

June 30, December 31,
2009 2007

Equity securities 56% 70%
Debt securities                        41                        17 
Other                          3                        13 

100% 100%
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Note 11: Derivative Financial Instruments 

As a strategy to maintain acceptable levels of exposure to the risk of changes in future cash flows 
due to interest rate fluctuations, the Museum entered into an interest rate swap agreement for a 
portion of its floating rate debt in May 2004.  The agreement matured in May 2009.  The 
agreement provided for the Museum to receive interest from the counterparty at LIBOR times 70% 
and to pay interest to the counterparty at a fixed rate of 3.15% on the notional amount of 
$51,000,000.  Under the agreement, the Museum paid or received the net interest amount monthly, 
with the monthly settlements included in interest expense.  The agreement was recorded at its fair 
value with subsequent changes in fair value included in nonoperating income in the consolidated 
statement of activities.  At December 31, 2007, the fair value of this swap was $(392,000). 

Subsequent to June 30, 2009, the Museum entered into various interest rate swap agreements for a 
portion of its floating rate debt effective September 2009.  The agreements provides for the 
Museum to receive interest from the counterparty at LIBOR times 70% and to pay interest to the 
counterparty at a range of fixed rates between 1.971% and 2.911% on the notional amount of 
$55,000,000.  Under the agreements, the Museum pays or receives the net interest amount monthly, 
with the monthly settlements included in interest expense.   

 

Note 12: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities 

Effective January 1, 2008, the Museum adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 157 (FAS 157), Fair Value Measurements.  FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.  
FAS 157 has been applied prospectively as of the beginning of 2008. 

FAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  FAS 157 
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable 
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.  The standard 
describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the 
full term of the assets or liabilities 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities 
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Following is a description of the inputs and valuation methodologies used for assets measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
financial position, as well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation 
hierarchy. 

Cash Equivalents 

The Museum’s cash equivalents consist of money market mutual funds.  Fair value is based on 
quoted prices in active markets and these assets are considered to be Level 1 of the valuation 
hierarchy. 

Investments 

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within 
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.  Level 1 securities include savings accounts, certificates of 
deposit, short-term investments, U.S. Government securities, corporate stocks and mutual funds.  If 
quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by a third-party pricing 
service using pricing models, quoted market prices of securities with similar characteristics or 
discounted cash flows.  For investments, other than alternative investments, the inputs used by the 
pricing service to determine fair value may include one, or a combination of, observable inputs 
such as benchmark securities, bids, offers, appraisals and reference data market research 
publications and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.  Level 2 securities include 
corporate bonds and real estate held for investment.  For alternative investments that have 
sufficient activity or liquidity within the fund, fair value is determined using the net asset value (or 
its equivalent) provided by the fund and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.   

These Level 2 securities include equity mutual funds, fixed income mutual funds, marketable 
alternatives and inflation hedging investments.  For alternative investments that do not have 
sufficient activity or liquidity within the fund, the net asset value (or its equivalent) provided by the 
fund is utilized, as a practical expedient, to determine fair value and are classified within Level 3 of 
the valuation hierarchy.  These Level 3 securities include marketable alternatives, inflation hedging 
and private equity/venture capital securities. 
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Assets Held in Charitable Lead Trusts 

Fair value is based on quoted market prices of the investments held within the trust.  Due to the 
nature of the valuation inputs, the interest is classified within Level 1 of the hierarchy. 

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying 
consolidated statement of financial position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the 
level within the FAS 157 fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at June 30, 
2009: 

Quoted Prices 
in Active Significant 

Markets for Other Significant 
Identical Observable Unobservable 

Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Value  (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)

Assets 
Cash equivalents  $                   756  $                      756  $                        -  $                         - 
Investments

Savings accounts                       112                          112                            -                             - 
Certificates of deposit                       331                          331                            -                             - 
Short-term investments                  30,028                     30,028                            -                             - 
U.S. Government securities                    1,448                       1,448                            -                             - 
Corporate bonds                    2,965                              -                    2,965                             - 
Corporate stocks                  41,189                     41,189                            -                             - 
Mutual funds

Equity - domestic                       456                          456                            -                             - 
Equity - international                  41,305                     11,973                  29,332                             - 
Fixed income                  32,331                     12,121                  20,210                             - 

Alternative investments
Marketable alternatives                  85,842                              -                  46,112                    39,730 
Inflation hedging                  39,521                              -                  24,141                    15,380 
Private equity/Venture capital                  19,291                              -                            -                    19,291 

Real estate held for investment                    2,020                              -                    2,020                             - 
               296,839                     97,658                124,780                    74,401 

Assets held in charitable lead trusts                       304                          304                            -                             - 

$            297,899 $                 98,718  $            124,780 $                74,401 

Fair Value Measurements Using
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The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of recurring fair value 
measurements recognized in the accompanying statement of financial position using significant 
unobservable (Level 3) inputs: 

Investments

Balance, January 1, 2008  $           22,436 

Total unrealized losses                (3,467)
Purchases, issuances and settlements               55,432 

Balance, June 30, 2009  $           74,401 

Total losses for the period included in change in net assets 
attributable to the change in unrealized gains and losses
related to assets and liabilities still held at the reporting date  $            (3,467)

 
Realized and unrealized gains and losses included in change in net assets for the period from 
January 1, 2008 through June 30, 2009, are reported in the statement of activities as follows: 

2009

Investment return less than amounts designated for 
current operations  $            (3,467)

 

The following methods were used to estimate the fair value of all other financial instruments 
recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at amounts other 
than fair value. 

Cash and cash equivalents - the carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short 
maturities of these instruments. 

Contributions receivable - the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 

Tax exempt bonds payable - the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 
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Note 13: Concentrations and Contingencies 

Approximately 43% of all contributions were received from two donors in 2009. 

The Museum is subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of 
conducting operations.  It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resolution 
of such claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the 
Museum. 

Current Economic Conditions 

The current economic environment presents not-for-profit organizations with unprecedented 
circumstances and challenges, which in some cases have resulted in large declines in the fair value 
of investments and other assets, declines in contributions, constraints on liquidity and difficulty 
obtaining financing.  The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using values and 
information currently available to the Museum. 

Current economic conditions have made it difficult for many donors to continue to contribute to 
not-for-profit organizations.  A significant decline in contribution revenue or investment return 
could have an adverse impact on the Museum’s future operating results. 

In addition, given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities 
recorded in the consolidated financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future 
adjustments in investment values and allowances for contributions receivable that could negatively 
impact the Museum’s ability to meet debt covenants or maintain sufficient liquidity. 

 

 




